
 

ADDENDUM #1 
 

November 16, 2022  

RFP Title: Human Capital Management (HCM) System 

Human Resources Management System Owner: County of Wake – Melissa England, Procurement 

RFP Bid No.:   #22-094 

  

The following items provide answers to questions that were submitted for RFP #22-094.  Wake County answers are in 
blue. 
 

1. Whether companies from Outside USA can apply for this? (like, from India or Canada) 

All companies, not dependent on location, are welcome to submit a proposal. 

2. Whether we need to come over there for meetings? 

The County is open to remote/hybrid approach to the implementation. Vendors are encouraged to describe the 
proposed approach to onsite and remote activities as part of the response to Tab 3 of the proposal (Project 
Approach and Implementation Methodology). 

3. Can we perform the tasks (related to RFP) outside USA? (like, from India or Canada) 

The County is open to remote/hybrid approach, to the implementation. Vendors are encouraged to describe the 
proposed approach to onsite and remote activities as part of the response to Tab 3 of the proposal (Project 
Approach and Implementation Methodology). 

Wake County requires that all data be stored, transmitted, or processed within the US, including any backups or 
copies stored for disaster recovery purposes. 

4. Can we submit the proposals via email? 

No email responses are not allowed. Please refer to the proposal submittal requirements, section 2.2. 

5. Is the RFP for a Human Capital Management System just for external/contingent employees like contractors and 
service providers, or is it for all employees of the county? 

It is for all employees of the county. 

6. Do you track concurrent positions on workers (multiple/additional jobs)? Do you track eligibility for 
compensation, benefits, time off, etc. based on the primary position or across multiple positions? (Core           
HCM) 

Yes, we track concurrent positions on workers. We track eligibility on the primary position but do not want to 
limit ourselves to that. 

7.  Are there any unions/collective bargaining units at the County? If so, how many? (Core HCM) 
No, not currently. 



8. Which employees will use Time Tracking (hourly, salary or both)? (Time Tracking) 

All employees (hourly and salaried) will be using time tracking. 

9. If you have unions, how many and what complexities or unique requirements are there for Time Tracking? 
(Time Tracking) 

Not applicable, see Question #7 

10. How many unique time calculations do you have? Example: OT, DT, Weekly OT, Holiday Pay (Time Tracking) 

We have all time calculations necessary to be compliant with FLSA rules and regulations. 

11. How many different work schedules do you have? (Time Tracking) 

EMS has five full-time regular/set schedules, three full-time self-scheduling schedules, two part-time 
(decreased FTE) self-scheduling schedules, and one self-scheduling schedule for temporary employees. The 
Sheriff's Office has more than 50 different work schedules and that number fluctuates depending on 
coverage, administration changes and on call schedules. 

12. In order to provide our SLA as part of our response we will require Wake County sign our NDA.  Who should I 
send this to for signature? 

 This should go through Melissa England, Purchasing Manager for consideration; but I don't think it's standard 
 to sign an NDA just to get a response to the RFP. 

13. Can you provide a technical landscape of their current HCM architecture?  It would be extremely helpful if 
you could provide key integrations and key systems that we will need to replace or integrate with. 

The County listed the types of systems the HCM will need to interface with in Attachment B. System names 
will only be released to short-listed vendors. 

14. We had shown the team demonstration of our financial management system in the past.  Why was it decided 
to not move forward with evaluation of a financial management system?  Should we even put that down as 
an optional component?  I only ask because we can stagger pricing for the subscription for our GL software 
not to go into effect until after you have gone live with HCM. 

The scope of this RFP is for HCM functionality only, and the County requests that proposals be restricted to 
HCM functionality/pricing only. 

15. You reference a shift bid process. Are shift bids sent to employees concurrently (in groups) or sequentially 
(one at a time)? 

EMS does not do shift bids on a regular schedule, such as monthly, quarterly, yearly. Every few years we will 
do a shift bid and when we do the questionnaire would be sent to everyone at one time. Sheriff's Office has 
not done a shift bid for any County paid overtime shifts. We have discussed this for the off-duty jobs but that 
will be handled in our RollKall system. 

16. Where are your Organizational Engagement Surveys currently stored? Do you require Engagement Survey 
functionality in the new system? 

 We will do our first one next year. It would be good if our new HCM had this feature but it is not required. 

17. What is the threshold/ criteria for determining “temporary overfill or overhire”? 

Two benefited employees occupy the same authorized position/FTE for a specified length of time. Must be 
approved via workflow (DEPT-->HR-->BMS-->CMO). These exist for a custom date range, typically 30 days to 
6 months. Common reasons: High profile retirement overlap for training. 

18. Provide details on Local Government Employees Retirement System (LGERS) requirements. 
Details on requirements can be found on the Local Government Employee Retirement System website 
http://www.myncretirement.com/ 



19. What type of internal capabilities do you have to plan, design, develop and deliver an end user training and 
documentation program? 

We have a learning management system and a training team that has capabilities to create user training; 
however, we would like to know what the vendor provides regarding training. 

20. Time to complete Position Control Requests (annual basis). How long does it take now? Please explain. 

An average of 250 transactions in a year. A rough estimate is that each takes 1 1/2 weeks to complete, with 
about 2-3 hours of hands-on research and review. 

21. Please clarify if the Consultant would have to be both a systems integrator and a value-added reseller in 
order for the County to agree to separate agreements with the software provider and the system 
integrator.  In other words, the system integrator is not a re-seller of the software. (Section 1.3.2 – 
Partnerships, Pg 8) 

Respondents do not need to be both a systems integration and a value-added reseller, though respondents 
should demonstrate the authority/permission to propose with a third-party as a part of proposals. 
Respondents should, in simple terms, explain the relationship between any partners as part of the proposal 
including the intended contracting relationship(s). 

22. The County has initially estimated that an HCM phase would be 12-15 months, with a financial phase (also 
12-15 months and subject to a separate RFP process following the identification of a preferred HCM vendor) 
following HCM. (Attachment A, Tab 5 – Project Schedule, IV. Go-Live Dates, Pg 25) 

The scope of this RFP is for HCM functionality only, and the County requests that proposals be restricted to 
HCM functionality/pricing only. 

23. If the answer to the above question is yes, would the County confirm the scope of financial management 
functionality in addendum response to questions? 

Not applicable. The scope of this RFP is for HCM functionality only, and the County requests that proposals 
be restricted to HCM functionality/pricing only. 

24. Please confirm the County’s total employee count (Section 1.2 – Project Overview, Pg. 3; Section 1.3 – Scope 
of Services, Pg. 6, Table; Section 5.1 – Current Operations, Pg. 19, Metric Table) 

The count provided in the RFP includes all employees and non-employees. 

25. Would the County be open to a Time & Materials cost proposal for implementation services that would 
include monthly invoicing based on actual hours worked? (Attachment C2, Part III, b. Implementation 
Services Cost, Pg. 2-3) 

The County's preference would be for acceptance-based deliverables/milestones that trigger payment. If a 
time & materials approach is proposed, the County would request retainage in the amounts specified in the 
Cost Narrative attachment. 

26. Would the 20% holdback for each invoice be paid upon reaching the next milestone or deliverable?  Or does 
the County expect for the holdback amounts for each invoice not to be paid until completion of the entire 
project?  Would the County be open to a lesser amount than 20% of each invoice? (Attachment C2, Part III, b. 
Implementation Services Cost, Pg. 2-3) 

The County requests that twenty percent (20%) of each invoice for the implementation service costs will be 
retained (as a “holdback”) until successful completion, and the County’s written acceptance, of the Project. 

27. Does the County require a Fixed Fee cost proposal for implementation services or is a Time & Materials 
proposal acceptable? 



The County's preference would be for acceptance-based deliverables/milestones that trigger payment. If a 
time & materials approach is proposed, the County would request retainage in the amounts specified in the 
Cost Narrative attachment. 

28. Since proposals will be submitted in mid-December and the County doesn’t anticipate a project start date 
until 4-6 months later, does the County expect the Consultant's entire implementation team to be named 
and include resumes?  Are the names of key executive team members sufficient at this time? (Attachment A, 
Tab 4, Project Team Resumes, Pg. 23) 

The County recommends reviewing the evaluation criteria from the RFP when considering the level and 
depth of resource resumes to include as part of the proposal. The County's preference is for resumes to be 
included for key personnel that are anticipated to be assigned to the project based on the stated timelines 
and current project workloads for the vendor. 

29. Is this reference requirement for software providers only since it uses the phrase “using the proposed 
solution”?  Is the County expecting system integrators to also list references for North Carolina government 
clients here? (Attachment A, Tab 11, NC Govt Clients/References, Pg. 41 -) 

The County recognizes the approach to references may vary based upon the vendor/partners in a proposal. 
The expectation is that each partner provides references, clearly indicating which references tie to which 
partner (as per the RFP: "Each Proposer engaged in the partnership shall respond to any and all applicable 
portions of this RFP that relate to the work that will be performed, or the capabilities provided. For example, 
each Proposer shall provide references, and each Proposer shall respond to the Company Background and 
History questions."  

Per Attachment A, Tab 11: "The County has a strong preference for public sector references that are using 
the proposed software solution, for new implementation project references and not upgrades from a 
previous version, and for references that have worked with the proposed system integrator/value-added 
reseller." 

30. Is there a minimum number of Project Manager references required in this section? (Attachment A, Tab 11, 
Pg. 43, IV. References for Project Manager Assigned) 

No - there is not a minimum number, though the County does request current/recent reference information 
as per Tab 11, Section IV: "References for the Project Manager are to be clients within the past five years" 

31. Most of the Data Conversion Objects show converting several years’ worth of historical data and bringing it 
into the new HCM.  Is the County open to migrating a shorter period of historical data (e.g., 1-2 years of data) 
if older records can still be accessed in a data repository?  If yes, would the historical data be just for 
occasional reference purposes or would the older historical data need to be incorporated into reports with 
more current migrated data and/or new data int he HCM going forward? 

The County has provided column I ("i") in the Data Conversion tab of Attachment B with the intent of 
allowing vendors the opportunity to identify if their standard scope of conversion for the particular row (data 
conversion object) is different than what the County has requested. The County will consider alternative 
approaches from vendors with appropriate explanation. 

32. How many unions/bargaining units does the County have? 

Please see question #7. 

33. Does the County have an existing Change Management team?  If not, is the County planning on creating a 
dedicated change management team for this project? 
The County has one FTE dedicated to leading organizational change. However, for large-scale, enterprise 
implementations such as this one, a network of change agents from across county departments is activated 
to help support and advocate for the change within their respective departments. 



34. Does the County have a strong preference between onsite vs. remote implementation services?  If a hybrid 
approach is acceptable, is there a preferred % mix? 

The County is open to a hybrid approach, 80% remote/20% onsite. 

35. Does the County have a strong preference for the implementer to provide end user training?  Or is a train-
the-trainer approach acceptable? 

The County would look to proposers to recommend their implementation approach based on best practices. 

36. Does the County have complex scheduling capabilities with your current Time & Attendance solution?  If yes, 
is it a point solution and/or standalone?  If yes, would the County consider keeping it and integrating into the 
new HCM/Payroll solution? 

The County does not have complex scheduling capabilities at this time and is interested in evaluating 
potential solutions through this RFP. 

37. In the RFP, you outline the different leave types. How is this process managed today, and in what system is it 
managed in? 

Leave administration is managed via the county's ERP application and via multiple manual spreadsheets. The 
system will only be shared with the short-listed vendors. 

38. There are several functional requirements that identify aligning/integration with Learning Management 
functionality. Rather than managing an interface to your existing LMS, will the county consider replacement 
functionality for Learning Management if efficiencies or enhanced functionality are identified in a new 
solution? 

The County plans on retaining its current LMS. 

39. Are standard letters/notifications that need to be generated related to employee information, citizens or 
both? 

The County anticipates creating these letters for employees. 

40. Can we showcase features that will be available by the time you go live with the new solution? 

Proposers may indicate future feature function that will be available in a future software release by October 
1, 2023 using the "F" response indicator in the Attachment B. 

41. Where is the criteria matrix sheet stored and how is it used in the Recruiting process? (Attachment B - 
Functional Requirements - 2. Applicant Tracking Tab - Item# AT.197) 

Since we are not currently using this feature in our current ATS, we don’t have additional information to 
provide. We noted it as “desired” versus “critical” to allow the vendor to demo this feature if they have it 
available. 

42. Who is your Background Check provider? (Attachment B - Functional Requirements - 2. Applicant Tracking 
Tab) 
This information will provided only to short-listed vendors. 

43. Can you please elaborate on your classification approval process? What are you trying to automate, the 
workflow process or the classification process? Is this for reclassifying jobs? (Attachment B - Functional 
Requirements - 4. Compensation Tab - Item# COM.3) 

Reclassification actions are currently processed using a Position Change Form (PCF). These are generated by 
managers in the departments and submitted to Human Resources via a devoted email address. HR 
Operations checks the emails and logs in the PCF's and related documentation, then emails the department, 
Budget and appropriate staff in Classification & Compensation. These are also logged to a Sharepoint tracker. 
Class & Comp Consultant reviews the PCF and related documentation and writes "analyst notes" on the PCF 
to document their approval or any changes. Approval is then indicated by the Consultant on the tracker, 



where Budget also provides their approval. Once both approvals are received on the tracker, Operations 
enters the information into Advantage and notifies the department.  

44. How do you calculate longevity/stability payments, what is based on? Please provide an example of the 
calculation. (Attachment B - Functional Requirements - 4. Compensation Tab - Item# COM.14) 

Longevity pay is based on your length of service and a percentage of your actual fiscal year to date pay: 
25 or more years of service = 4.5% 
The percentage paid is based on years of service on June 30. All remaining grandfathered employees leverage 
the above calculation. 

45. Is the requirement for multiple employees in a single position number only required for timesheet approvals 
or other processes as well? (Attachment B - Functional Requirements 9. Position Management Tab - Item# 
PM.18) 

This would be applicable for other processes as well. 

46. What is your GL system? 

The County will be releasing this information to short-listed vendors only. 

47. Provide details on billing notice for employees on leave of absence 

Please describe how your system can accomplish when an employee is on a leave without pay absence. 

48. For each functional area: number of project team members 

The County intends to use the information provided by vendors in proposals to help guide the internal 
planning efforts for the implementation process. The County requests that vendors are realistic in providing 
resource hour estimates and FTE requirements as part of proposal responses. 

49. How many project team members are dedicated to the implementation and how many are participating on 
an as needed basis? 

The County intends to use the information provided by vendors in proposals to help guide the internal 
planning efforts for the implementation process. The County requests that vendors are realistic in providing 
resource hour estimates and FTE requirements as part of proposal responses. The County anticipates that 
most resources will be engaged in the implementation process while also balancing regularly-assigned duties. 

50. What are your language requirements? 

English -and the County would be interested to understand any capabilities systems have to present 
information in other languages. 

51. How do employees normally receive training? Formal instructor-led training, informal knowledge transfer, 
web-based training, other? 

Training is provided in various ways: instructor led, informal knowledge transfer, web-based via our LMS 
system, and primarily virtual delivery. 

52. Do you have an internal Organization Change Management department? 

The County has one FTE dedicated to leading organizational change management. However, for large-scale, 
enterprise implementations such as this one, a network of change agents from across county departments is 
activated to help support and advocate for the change within their respective departments. 

53. Do you have a formal change management approach for this implementation?  

The County follows a four-phased approach to managing organizational change: define, plan, implement, 
sustain. 

54. Do you have an internal Learning and Development department? 



Yes, we have a Training Division in our HR Department. 

55. The system has the ability to allow a user to update one section of a pay table without updating the rest of 
the pay table. Please explain? (COM.11) 

This requirement refers to automated features of updating a pay table to minimize manual data entry. 

56. The system has the ability to identify exceptions-based positions and isolate from mass compensation 
adjustments. Please explain "exception based positions"? (COM.27) 

Due to county business rules, certain positions may have compensation changes based on certain criteria. 

57. The system has the ability to perform macro-level compensation analysis for reporting purposes. Please 
explain (COM.36) 

This refers to the system's ability to produce high-level compensation analysis reports. Example: overall 
compensation figures by category, class, group, etc.  

58. Track and identify retirement eligibility based on internal and previous external eligible service years. What 
does this requirement have to do with Applicant Tracking? (AT.28) 

This question may have been captured in the wrong section of the requirements document; however, we are 
requesting that ability to be able to track and identify this. 

59. Please elaborate on what you mean by "workstation". Is "workstation" a critical component of this 
requirement if all other items (user, date, time) can be tracked? (BEN.3) 

If user, date, and time can be tracked, that is sufficient to meet the "workstation" component of the 
requirement. 

60. Do retirees, or active employees, need telephonic enrollment services? E.g. do you need a service that allows 
the member/retiree to call in and make their enrollment over the phone? (BEN.4) 

We need the ability to enroll online via web or mobile device. We are not looking for telephone enrollment 
service. 

61. Beside different rates, how do retiree benefits differ from the active population? (BEN.4) 

Retirees have different enrollment and payment business rules. 

62. How do retirees pay for their benefits? (BEN.4) 

The county does a monthly bank draft. 

63. Do retirees have pensions? If so, who manages the pension and how is the pension amount calculated? 
(BEN.4) 

The state retirement system handles all retirement for North Carolina government entities. 

64. Where does retiree enrollment data need to be transmitted? (BEN.4) 

To the county’s health benefit enrollment vendor. 

65. Please provide additional details, or an example, on what elements create a User-Defined table (BEN.13) 

The ability to capture data that is not already pre-defined in the system. 

66. Please provide additional details on the need for capturing insurance ID numbers (BEN.18) 

The abbility to reconcile vendor billings without using Social Security numbers. 

67. Please provide additional details on "non-county benefit providers". What type of benefits are these and who 
are the providers? (BEN.38) 



Supplemental benefits offered by third party vendors such as Life Insurance, Accident Insurance, etc. The 
provider names will only be provided to short-listed vendors. 

68. Is Wake County asking for the ability to override the calculated premium for a specific employee within a 
specific benefit or the ability to change a deduction within the payroll system? (BEN.48) 

Could be both, but only if business rules for premiums do not fulfill business needs. 

69. How do employees on leave pay for benefits today? (if they elect to keep benefits) (BEN.54) 

They are billed and given the option to retain their benefits. COBRA is offered after 30 days of leave without 
pay (non-FMLA). 

70. How many employees on leave are paying for benefits through a direct billing process today? (BEN.54) 

This varies. 

71. Please provide examples of subsidies or incentives that would impact benefits (BEN.60) 

We offer wellness incentives when an employee has performed their annual biometric screening, or 
completes a health assessment, or completed an attestation for the use of tobacco/smoking. 

72. How are retiree notifications distributed today? (BEN.61) 

The County mails retirees paper documentation regarding open enrollment. 

73. Would inactive employees also have a termination date with Wake County? (BEN.62) 

Yes. 

74. Are electronic confirmation letters desired or does Wake County want confirmation letters mailed? (BEN.89) 

The County desires to automate the benefit enrollment process with the flexibility of mailing out some 
notices to those with limited access. 

75. Please elaborate on this requirement, we're not sure we understand what you mean by 3rd party application. 
(BEN.91) 

Currently we offer benefits through vendors and we would like the ability to interface our enrollment process 
with the vendor. Employees are required to contact the vendor directly instead of being able to enroll 
through the county internal processes. 

76. Please provide additional on information on why a member wouldn't be allowed to re-enroll in the same 
benefit as the prior year, if eligible (BEN.95) 

We want them to be allowed to have the same coverage as previous year but would like system constraints 
that stops them from picking the same plans which currently generates a new enrollment for the year and 
causes issues with the benefit vendors we send data to. We want the new system to have an option to "keep 
current coverage" as opposed to "reselecting the same coverage". This causes rates to go up when 
employees are already grandfathered into lower rates from their initial enrollment based on age. 

77. Who is Wake County's current COBRA provider? Are you looking for the new Ben Admin system to also 
administer COBRA? (BEN.96) 

The County will not disclose its COBRA vendor at this time. It is not critical for the future system to administer 
COBRA benefits, however, the County is open to exploring what is out there. 

78. How many grandfathered plans does Wake County have? (BEN.98) 

There are no ACA grandfathered plans. We have employees who are "grandfathered" in to full-time health 
and dental premium rates even if they are part-time employees. There are 2 supplemental insurance plans 
for Critical Illness and one plan for Long Term care that is no longer offered to new employees. 



79. We aren't sure that we understand this requirement. Can you please provide additional details on this 
process? (BEN.99) 

Law Enforcement Officers who meet particular business rules are eligible for a special payment in retirement 
and need to be identified. 

80. How many disabled dependents does Wake County have today? (BEN.100) 

Four. 

81. Regarding Court Ordered Dependents, do you simply need the ability to identify the dependent (and restrict 
removal) or does Wake County need full QMSCO services? (BEN.103) 

We want a way to restrict removal of court ordered dependents and a way to easily see when a dependent is 
court ordered. 

82. How many court ordered dependents does Wake County have today? (BEN.104) 

Twenty-four. 

83. Regarding premium reductions - is this pertaining to salary based benefits when a salary is decreased? 
(BEN.115) 

This is related to meeting wellness goals/incentives which qualifies an employee for health premium 
discounts. 

84. Please provide examples of "needed information" for benefit enrollment (BEN.117) 

Documentation proof for adding/removing a dependent changes including but not limited to: Birth, 
Adoption, Marriage, etc 

85. Please elaborate on this requirement (BEN.119) 

We want to be able to offer campaigns to employees that will allow them to donate from their paycheck. An 
example is contribution made to the United Way Campaign. 

86. Is Wake County self-funded for medical? 

Yes. 

87. How many W2s did Wake County produce in 2021? 

5507 

88. Please provide your Benefit Guide. The embedded link in attachment A will not open. 

https://s3.us-west-1.amazonaws.com/wakegov.com.if-us-west-1/s3fs-public/documents/2022-
02/2022%20Benefit%20Guide.pdf 

89. Please provide user count for licensing. 

Please refer to section 1.3 scope of services of the RFP document. 

90. Would you be willing to share one of your more complex timesheets with any PII redacted? 

Please see Attachment to addenda. 

 
 
 


